
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
WILL BE HELD 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2024 AT 6:00pm 
 

LOCATION: AZALEA HALL 
1620 Pickett Road 

McKinleyville, California 
 

Or 
 

TELECONFERENCE Via ZOOM & TELEPHONE: 
Use ZOOM MEETING ID: 859 4543 6653 (https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85945436653) or DIAL 

IN TOLL FREE: 1-888-788-0099 (No Password Required!) 
 

To participate in person, please come to Azalea Hall.  
 

To participate by teleconference, please use the toll free number listed above, or join through the 
internet at the Zoom App with weblink and ID number listed above, or the public may submit written 

comments to the Board Secretary at: comments@mckinleyvillecsd.com up until 4:30 p.m. on 
Tuesday, December 3, 2024.  

 
All Public Comment received before the above deadline will be provided to the Board at 9 a.m. on 
Wednesday, December 4, 2024 in a supplemental packet information that will also be posted on 

the website for public viewing.  
___________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA 
6:00 p.m. 

A.  CALL TO ORDER  
 
A.1 Roll Call 
 
A.2 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
A.3 Additions or Changes to the Agenda 
Items may be added to the Agenda in accordance with Section 54954.2(b)(2) of the Government Code 
(Brown Act), upon a determination by two-thirds vote of the members of the legislative body present at the 
time of the meeting, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those 
members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the 
attention of the McKinleyville Community Services District after the Agenda was posted.  
 

Mission statement of McKinleyville Community Services District: 
“McKinleyville Community Services District provides authorized services 

fundamental to the health and well-being of the community.” 
 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85945436653
mailto:contacts@mckinleyvillecsd.com


A.4 Approval of the Agenda

A.5 Closed Session Discussion
At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider existing or
anticipated litigation, liability claims, real property negotiations, license and permit determinations, threats
to security, public employee appointments, personnel matters, evaluations and discipline, labor negotiations,
or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege.

a. CONFERENCE WITH DISTRICT LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government
Code § 54954.5 and 54957) 

Agency designated representative: Board Members Dennis 
Mayo and David Couch 

Unrepresented employee to whom negotiations pertain: All 
MCSD Employees 

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS
These are items of a Quasi-Judicial or Legislative nature.  Public comments relevant to these proceedings 
are invited.   

NO PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULED 

C. PUBLIC COMMENT AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
Any person may address the Board at this time upon any subject not identified on this Agenda but within the 
jurisdiction of the McKinleyville Community Services District; however, any matter that requires action will 
be referred to staff for a report of action at a subsequent Committee or Board meeting.  As to matters on the 
Agenda, an opportunity will be given to address the Board when the matter is considered.  Comments are 
limited to 3 minutes.  Letters should be used for complex issues. 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR
Consent Calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial, to be acted upon by the Board of 
Directors at one time without discussion.  If any Board member, staff member, or interested person requests 
that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar, it shall be removed so that it may be acted upon 
separately. 

D.1 Consider Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Regular P. 5
Meeting on November 6, 2024 

Attachment 1 – Draft Minutes from November 6, 2024 P. 7

D.2 Consider Approval of October Draft Treasurer’s Report P. 13

D.3 Compliance with State Double Check Valve (DCV) Law P. 23

D.4 Consider Adoption of Resolution 2024-25 Authorizing the General P. 25
Manager To Act as Authorized Agent and Execute Contracts as Part 
Of the California Forest Improvement Program Grant Application 

Attachment 1 – CFIP Application  P. 27
Attachment 2 – Resolution 2024-25 P. 37

2



D.5 Consider Appointment of Nancy Morelli as Alternate Public Member P. 39
Of the Trails, Infrastructure, Clean-Ups, and Security Subcommittee 

 Attachment 1 – Nancy Morelli MCFC Subcommittee Application P. 41 

D.6 Consider Adoption of Resolution 2024-21 Affirming Board Support of P. 45
the Existing Memorandums of Understanding with the Redwood Coast  
Mountain Bike Association (RCMBA) and the Mountain Bike Tribal Trail 
Alliance (MBTTA)  

Attachment 1 – Resolution 2024-21 P. 47
Attachment 2 – RCMBA MOU  P. 49
Attachment 3 – MBTTA MOU P. 59

D.7  Consider Appointment of Evan Schwartz as Alternate Public Member P. 69
of the PARC Committee 

Attachment 1 – Evan Schwartz PARC Committee Application P. 71

E. CONTINUED AND NEW BUSINESS

E.1 Introduction of New District Staff Members (Informational) P. 73

E.2 Consider Approval of Filing a Notice of Exemption for Construction of P. 75
Fischer Lift Station Seismic Rehabilitation Project (Action) 

Attachment 1 – CEQA Notice of Exemption for Fischer Lift P. 79
Station Upgrades and Seismic Retrofit Project 

E.3 Adopt Resolution 2024-26 Accepting the Appointments of Directors P. 81
Binder and Orsini in Lieu of Election and Schedule a Special Meeting 
for the Board Secretary to Administer the Oath of Office (Action) 

Attachment 1- August 21, 2024 Correspondence County of P. 83
Humboldt Office of Elections 
Attachment 2 – Resolution 2024-26 P. 85

F. REPORTS
No specific action is required on these items, but the Board may discuss any particular item as required. 

F.1  ACTIVE COMMITTEE REPORTS
a. Parks and Recreation Committee (Binder/Biteman)
b. Area Fund (John Kulstad/Binder)
c. Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (Biteman/Mayo)
d. McKinleyville Senior Center Board Liaison (Binder/Couch)
e. Audit and Finance Committee (Orsini/Biteman)
f. Employee Negotiations (Couch/Mayo)
g. McKinleyville Municipal Advisory Committee (Orsini/Binder)
h. McKinleyville Community Forest Committee (Orsini/Biteman)
i. HBMWD Muni Water Task Force (Couch/Mayo)

3



F.2 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY REPORTS

F.3  STAFF REPORTS
a. Finance & Administration Department (Samantha Howard) P. 87
b. Operations Department (James Henry) P. 89
c. Parks & Recreation Department (Kirsten Messmer) P. 95

Attachment 1 – Parks and Recreation Committee Approved P. 99
Meeting Minutes from October 16, 2024 
Attachment 2 – McKinleyville Community Forest Committee P. 103
Approved Meeting Minutes from October 15, 2024 

d. General Manager (Pat Kaspari) P. 107
Attachment 1 – WWMF Monthly Self-Monitoring Report P. 113

F.4  PRESIDENT’S REPORT

F.5 BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, REPORTS AND AGENDA
ITEMS REQUESTS 

G. ADJOURNMENT

Posted 5:00 pm on November 27, 2024 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.5. this agenda and complete Board packet are available for 
public inspection on the web at McKinleyvillecsd.com/minutes or upon request at the MCSD office, 1656 Sutter 
Road, McKinleyville. A complete packet is also available for viewing at the McKinleyville Library at 1606 Pickett 
Road, McKinleyville.  If you would like to receive the complete packet via email, free of charge, contact the Board 
Secretary at (707)839-3251 to be added to the mailing list.  

McKinleyville Community Services District will, on request, make agendas available in appropriate alternative 
formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 
U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who need 
this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Board Secretary at (707) 839-3251. Notification 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements for accommodations.  

4



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024       TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  D.1 Consider Approval of the Minutes of November 6, 2024 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting  

PRESENTED BY:  Joey Blaine, Board Secretary 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Roll Call Vote – Consent Calendar 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors for the 
November 6, 2024 Regular Meeting. 

 The Draft minutes are attached for the above listed meeting(s). A reminder that 
 the minutes are approved by the legislative body that is the Board of Directors, 
 not individual members of the Board who were present at a meeting.  

Alternatives: 
Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action 

Fiscal Analysis:  
Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements:  
Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  
• Attachment 1 – Draft Minutes from November 6, 2024 Regular Meeting 

  

5



 

 

 

6



Minutes of the November 6, 2024 Board Meeting Page 1 of 5 

 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY  
SERVICES DISTRICT HELD ON WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2024 at 6:00 P.M. 

IN PERSON AT AZALEA HALL – 1620 PICKETT ROAD, MCKINLEYVILLE, CALIFORNIA 
and 

TELECONFERENCE Via ZOOM & TELEPHONE: 
ZOOM MEETING ID: 859 4543 6653 (https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85945436653) and  

TOLL FREE: 1-888-788-0099 

AGENDA ITEM A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A.1 Roll Call: The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. with following Directors and Staff in
attendance in person at Azalea Hall:

Scott Binder, President Pat Kaspari, General Manager 
James Biteman, Vice President Joey Blaine, Board Secretary  
David Couch, Director  Kirsten Messmer, Parks & Recreation Director 
Dennis Mayo, Director James Henry, Operations Director  
Greg Orsini, Director  Samantha Howard, Finance Director  

A.2 Pledge of Allegiance: The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Couch.

A.3 Additions to the Agenda: There were no additions or changes to the agenda.

A.4 Approval of the Agenda:

Motion: It was moved to approve the agenda. 
Motion by: Director Orsini Second: Director Mayo  
There were no comments from the Board or public. 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo, and Orsini Nays:  None   Absent: None 
Motion Summary: Motion passed. 

A.5  Closed Session Discussion

There was no closed session scheduled. 

AGENDA ITEM B. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

There was no public hearing scheduled. 

AGENDA ITEM C. PUBLIC COMMENT AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

There was no public comment or written communications. 

AGENDA ITEM D. CONSENT CALENDAR:  

D.1 Consider Approval of the Minutes of the October 2, 2024 Board of Directors Regular
Meeting and the October 23, 2024 Special Meeting 

D.2 Consider Approval of September Draft Treasurer’s Report

D.3 Compliance with State Double Check Valve (DCV) Law

D.4 Consider Designation of Director Dennis Mayo as Authorized Voting Representative and
Director Scott Binder as the Alternate for the December 4, 2024 Association of California 

ITEM D.1 ATTACHMENT 1

7

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85945436653


Minutes of the November 6, 2024 Board Meeting Page 2 of 5 

Water Agencies (ACWA) Membership Meeting 

D.5 Consider Approval of Public Member Applicants to the Trails, Infrastructure, Clean Up
and Security Subcommittee 

Director Biteman requested to pull Item D.5. 

Motion: It was moved to approve Consent Calendar items D.1 through D.4 
Motion by: Director Orsini Second: Director Mayo  
There were no comments from the Board or public. 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo, and Orsini Nays:  None   Absent: None 
Motion Summary: Motion passed. 

D.5 Consider Approval of Public Member Applicants to the Trails, Infrastructure, Clean Up
and Security (TICS) Subcommittee 

Parks and Recreation Director Messmer presented the item. 

The Board engaged in a lively discussion. 

Public comment was given by Lesley Frisbee, MCSD ratepayer. 

Motion: It was moved to accept staff recommendation to appoint Charlie Caldwell, Kenneth Burton, 
Phil Heidrick, Shaun Fyfe, and Justin Brown tothe five public member seats TICS Subcommittee and 
recommend that the McKinleyville Community Forest Committee consider appointing Nancy Morelli as 
an alternate public member. 
Motion by: Director Mayo; Second: Director Biteman 
There were no comments from the Board or public. 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo, and Orsini  Nays:  None  Absent: None 
Motion Summary: Motion passed. 

AGENDA ITEM E. CONTINUED AND NEW BUSINESS: 

E.1 Consider Approval of Revised Salary Schedule

General Manager Kaspari reviewed the staff note for the item. 

Directors asked clarifying questions of staff. 

Director Couch and Director Mayo, who are on the Employee Negotiations committee, gave a report 
out of their October 18, 2024 meeting with staff and expressed support for the item. 

There was no public comment. 

Motion: It was moved to approve the revised salary schedule for implementation in the 2025/2026 
fiscal year. 
Motion by: Director Orsini Second: Director Mayo  
There were no comments from the Board or public. 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo, and Orsini  Nays:  None  Absent: None 
Motion Summary: Motion passed. 

8



Minutes of the November 6, 2024 Board Meeting Page 3 of 5 

E.2 Annual Review and Discussion of 2024-2029 Strategic Plan

The item was overviewed by Board Secretary Blaine. 

Board members asked clarifying questions. 

There was no public comment. 

This was an information only item.  No action was taken. 

E.3 Consider Adoption of Resolution 2024-24 Initiating the Transfer of Funds from Humboldt
County Treasury to Umpqua Bank and California Class 

Finance Director Howard presented the item. 

Directors discussed and made comments in support of the transfer of funds. 

There was no public comment. 

Motion: It was moved to adopt Resolution 2024-24. 
Motion by: Director Orsini; Second: Director Mayo  
There were no comments from the Board or public. 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo, and Orsini  Nays:  None  Absent: None 
Motion Summary: Motion passed. 

E.4 Consider Application for CAL FIRE Forest Health Grant and Designation
of the General Manager as the Authorized Agent 

General Manager Kaspari presented the item. 

Directors asked clarifying questions and Board discussion took place. 

There was no public comment. 

Motion: It was moved to adopt Resolution 2024-23. 
Motion by: Director Orsini; Second: Director Mayo  
There were no comments from the Board or public. 
Roll Call: Ayes:  Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo, and Orsini  Nays:  None  Absent: None 
Motion Summary: Motion passed. 

AGENDA ITEM F. REPORTS 

F.1 ACTIVE COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Parks and Recreation Committee (Binder/Biteman): President Binder was unable to attend the
October meeting.

b. Area Fund (John Kulstad/Binder): Did not meet.

c. Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (Biteman/Mayo): Director Biteman gave
a brief report from the October meeting.

d. McKinleyville Senior Center Board Liason (Binder/Couch): President Binder gave a brief report
on the activities of the Senior Center.

9



Minutes of the November 6, 2024 Board Meeting Page 4 of 5 

e. Audit and Finance (Orsini/Biteman): Directors Orsini and Biteman gave a report out of the
November 1, 2024 meeting.

f. Employee Negotiations (Couch/Mayo): Directors Couch and Mayo had nothing to add to discussion
that took place during item E.1.

g. McKinleyville Municipal Advisory Committee (Orsini/Binder): Director Orsini had nothing further
to add as this month’s MMAC meeting was the joint MMAC/MCSD meeting.

h. McKinleyville Community Forest Committee (Orsini/Biteman): Director Orsini had nothing further
to add to discussion that took place during item D.5.

i. HBMWD Muni Water Task Force (Couch/Mayo): Did not meet.

F.2 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY REPORTS

Director Mayo stated that he will be making efforts to reach out to Senator-Elect Adam Schiff to develop 
a working relationship. 

F.3 STAFF REPORTS

a. Finance and Administration Department: Finance Director Howard reported the auditors will be on
site at the District the week of November 18, 2024.

b. Operations Department (James Henry):  Operations Director Henry reported the District and
several staff were recipients of annual awards from the California Water Environment Agency.  Utility
Worker Jordan Johnson was awarded Collection System Person of the Year, the District was
awarded Collection System of the Year and Safety Plant of the Year, Utility Worker Bill McBroome
was awarded Electrical Instrumentation Person of the Year, and Operations Director James Henry
received the Quarter Century Award.

c. Parks & Recreation Department (Kirsten Messmer): Parks and Recreation Director Messmer
reported that the Parks and Recreation Committee (PARC) meetings would be changing their times
from 6:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. on the third Wednesday of the month.

d. General Manager (Patrick Kaspari):  General Manager Kaspari reiterated that Director Mayo and
President Binder will attend the ACWA Fall Conference during the December 4, 2024 Board meeting.
He requested that the remaining three directors inform staff if they will not be present to ensure a
quorum. He also informed the Board that a special meeting may be called in December to facilitate
the swearing-in of President Binder and Director Orsini for their new terms of office.

F.4 PRESIDENT’S REPORT:

F.5 BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, REPORTS AND AGENDA ITEM
REQUESTS:

Director Orsini commended President Binder on his tenure as Board President. 

Director Mayo briefly reported on his experience at the ACWA Region 1 Event Tour of the Mt. 
Tamalpais Watershed. 

10



Minutes of the November 6, 2024 Board Meeting Page 5 of 5 

G. ADJOURNMENT:
Meeting Adjourned at 8:05 p.m.

__________________________ 
Joseph Blaine, Board Secretary 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



McKinleyville Community Services District 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
December 4, 2024    TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 
ITEM:  D.3   Compliance with State Double Check Valve (DCV) Law  

PRESENTED BY:  James Henry, Operations Director 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Roll Call Vote – Consent Calendar 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize staff to provide the listed customers with 
formal notice that their water service will be discontinued in one month if they have not 
come into compliance with state law regarding water service cross-connection in 
accordance with MCSD Rules 7 and 10. 

Discussion: 
Customers listed below are currently not in compliance with State Law regarding  cross 
connection control for water customers with an alternate water supply.  These customers 
have been notified of their respective violations, as noted, and have been provided 
notification of this meeting. 

1st Notice  October 15, 2024 

10 Day Notice  November 20, 2024 

Board Meeting   December 4, 2024 

 Lock January 6, 2024 

Route 16 

 

Account # Address 

 16-555-000 3361 Halfway Ave 

 16-055-000 3011 McKinleyville Ave 

    

    

     

     

 
23



 

 

 

24



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024      TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  D.4 Consider Adoption of Resolution 2024-25 Authorizing 
the General Manager to Act as Authorized Agent and 
Execute Contracts as Part of the California Forest 
Improvement Program Grant Application 

PRESENTED BY:  Patrick Kaspari, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Roll Call – Consent Calendar 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board review the information provided, discuss, take 
Public comment and adopt Resolution 2024-25 (Attachment 2) authorizing the 
General Manager to act as authorized agent and enter into contracts as part of 
the California Forest Improvement Program Grant Application. 

Discussion: 
MCSD staff has been diligently collaborating with BBW & Associates to explore 
funding opportunities for developing a Forest Management Plan for the 
McKinleyville Community Forest. During this process, we identified that the 
California Forest Improvement Program (CFIP) will provide cost-share assistance 
to private and public ownerships for the preparation of a Forest Management 
Plan by a Registered Professional Forester.   
 
The overall purpose of CAL FIRE’s California Forest Improvement Program 
(CFIP) is to encourage private and public investment in, and improved 
management of, California forest lands and resources. This focus is to ensure 
adequate high quality timber supplies, related employment and other economic 
benefits, and the protection, maintenance, and enhancement of a productive and 
stable forest resource system for the benefit of present and future generations.  
CFIP will be releasing up to $2 million per solicitation period.  The program is 
currently accepting applications for the solicitation period ending on January 2, 
2025 and staff are actively working on preparing the grant application for 
submission. 

Alternatives: 

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action 

 
 

25



Fiscal Analysis: 
The grant may fund up to 75% of the development for the Forest Management 
Plan, which is estimated to cost between $20,000 and $60,000, depending on 
how many of the technical studies (e.g. comprehensive tree, invasive species, 
special status plant inventories, road and erosion assessments, etc.) 

Environmental Requirements: 
The Forest Management Plan will act as the guidance document for the CEQA 
process for various projects contained within it. 

Exhibits/Attachments: 
• Attachment 1 – CFIP Application
• Attachment 2 – Resolution 2024-25

26



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  Page 1 of 6
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 03/2023) 

CFIP APPLICATION 

Instructions 

Before completing this form, make sure you are using the most current version. Current forms 
are available from your CAL FIRE Forestry Assistance Specialist (FAS) and are posted on the 
California Forest Improvement (CFIP) webpage at the following web link: 

https://www.fire.ca.gov/what-we-do/grants/california-forest-improvement 

Read the CFIP User’s Guide, available on the CFIP webpage linked above, regarding 
program requirements. 

The Grantee for a CFIP grant must be the deeded landowner. If there is more than one 
landowner, one of them will be designated as the Grantee and that person will complete this 
form and the STD 204 Payee Data Record associated with this application. All additional 
landowners are Participants. 

Contact information 
Grantee 
Contact information for the Grantee is listed in the RM-7A CFIP Agreement form. 

Participant(s) / Additional Landowner(s) 
Name: McKinleyville Community Services District -Pat Kaspari 
Title: General Manager 
Mailing Address 

Street:1656 Sutter District 
City, State Zip Code:95519 

 Phone Number:707 839-3251 
 E-mail Address:pkaspari@mckinleyville.csd.com

Use the continuation sheet if additional owners are listed on the deed. 

ITEM D.4 ATTACHMENT 1

27

https://www.fire.ca.gov/what-we-do/grants/california-forest-improvement


STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  Page 2 of 6
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 03/2023) 

Registered Professional Forester (RPF) 
An RPF is required. 

Name: Greg Blomstrom BBW & Associates 
Title: Associate Forester 
RPF Number:1877 
Mailing Address 

Street: POB 802 
City, State Zip Code: McKinleyville, CA 95518 

 Phone Number:707383-7293 
 E-mail Address:gblomstrom01@gmail.com

Responsible Person 
Enter the person to be contacted, if other than the RPF (e.g., property manager). If left blank, 
the RPF will be contacted. 

Name: Pat Kaspari  
Title: General Manager MCSD 
Mailing Address 

Street:1656 Sutter Road 
City, State Zip Code: Mckinleyville, CA 95519 

 Phone Number: 707383-7293 
 E-mail Address:pkaspari@mckinleyvillecsd.com

Landowner Eligibility Information 
1) To be eligible, the landowner must own 5,000 acres or less of forestland in California. As per

PRC 4793(e), forestland means land at least 10 percent occupied by trees of any size that
are native to California, including native oaks, or formerly having had that tree cover and not
currently zoned for uses incompatible with forest resource management. Does the landowner
own ≤ 5,000 acres of forestland in California?

 Yes 
 No 

2) To be eligible, a landowner must own at least 20 acres of contiguous forestland, unless the
property is zoned TPZ. Does the landowner own ≥ 20 contiguous acres of forestland in
California?

 Yes 
 No 

If no, explain: 
3) To determine whether you have any conflict of interest, have you been employed by the State

of California within the last 12 months?
 No 
 Yes 

If yes, explain: 

28



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY                                                                                                 Page 3 of 6 
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 03/2023) 
 

Property Eligibility Information 
1) If the project proposes timber related practices (site preparation, planting, precommercial 

thinning, release, and follow-up work), the project area must cover at least 5 acres. Is the 
total project area proposed for timber related practices 5 acres or more? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A, application is for management plan only 
 N/A, application is for wildlife/conservation practice only 

2) Land use restrictions. 
a) How is the project area zoned? Check all that apply and explain other.  

 TPZ 
 Agricultural Preserve (Williamson Act) 
 Other. Explain:      

b) Enter whether there are title restrictions that may restrict resource management activities. 
If there are, please provide CAL FIRE a copy of the information. E.g., is there a 
Conservation Easement, CC&R’s, or a petition for rezoning from TPZ to other uses, 
existing, underway, or contemplated, which would restrict resource management 
activities for the period during which the grant is administered (10 years)? Areas subject 
to forest improvement funding can’t be converted to other uses such as residential 
development, landscaping, gardens, etc. If so, CAL FIRE would require that the funding 
spent on a forest improvement project be repaid with interest. Are there any such 
restrictions? 

 No 
 Yes 

If yes, explain and provide documentation: There is a NUGA recorded from 
the WCB that prevents subdivision. Forst Management is permitted 
consistent with wildlife habitat  

3) CFIP projects are non-commercial operations typically used to modify sub-merchantable 
trees or trees with no commercial value. Commercial timber operations require the approval 
of a Timber Harvest Plan (THP), Non-industrial Timber Management Plan (NTMP), 
emergency notice or exemption by CAL FIRE. This question is used to determine whether 
there are any existing Forest Practice Rule requirements in the project area. CFIP can’t be 
used to pay for Forest Practice Act requirements. Is the land proposed for CFIP funding 
currently, or in the last 10 years been, subject to commercial timber harvesting? 

 No 
 Yes 

If yes, please list the project number(s): 1-17-031 HUM 
If yes, has a completion and stocking report been approved by CAL FIRE? 

 Yes 
 No 

If no, please explain:      

29



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  Page 4 of 6
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 03/2023) 

30



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  Page 5 of 6
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 03/2023) 

4) CAL FIRE does not allow CFIP projects that are also proposed under a federal program,
such as the Environmental Quality Incentives Program (EQIP), for the same or equivalent
practice on the same acreage. CFIP projects may be used in conjunction with federal
programs to complement each other. Simultaneous projects will be closely coordinated with
federal partners. Have you or do you plan to apply for forest improvement work which is the
subject of payments or other assistance provided pursuant to federal law for the same
practices on the same acres as proposed in this application?

 No 
 Yes 

If yes, please explain: 

Management Plan and California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Review 
1)Is there a previously prepared Forest or Land Management Plan for the area proposed for
CFIP project?

 No 
If no, a long-term Forest Management Plan must be completed prior to approval 
of ground practices. 

 Yes 
If yes, a CFIP plan, Non-industrial Timber Management Plan (NTMP), 
American Tree Farm System (ATFS) plan, or Environmental Quality Incentives 
Program (EQIP) plan may be adequate depending on the age and quality of 
the plan. Plan revision may be advised for older plans to document changes in 
the project area or to include additional information to make the plan more 
complete. Consult with the CAL FIRE FAS to determine whether the existing 
plan is adequate. 
Should the plan be revised? 

 Yes 
 No 

If yes, and the existing plan was completed under a CFIP agreement, enter the 
CFIP Project Number and/or CFIP grant agreement number:    
If yes, and the existing plan is an NTMP, enter the NTMP number:    

2) Enter the number of acres under the proposed/existing management plan:599
3) Enter the number of acres in the total ownership:1,082

31



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  Page 6 of 6
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 03/2023) 

Location 
1) Enter the site address of the project area: Murray Rd to Hunts Dr. Eastern McKinleyville
2) Is the project located within the Coastal Zone (PRC 30103)?  Yes   No 
3) Is the project adjacent to a public park, or any other special treatment area?  Yes  No 
4) Parcel Locations. Provide the information below, listed separately for each parcel in the

project area. Use continuation sheet, if more than six parcels are in the project area.
a) First parcel

i) Assessor Parcel Number: 509-061-001
ii) County: Humboldt
iii) Zoning: TPZ
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian: Section 3& 4, T6N, R1E HB&M

b) Second parcel
i) Assessor Parcel Number:510-011-023
ii) County: Humboldt
iii) Zoning: TPZ
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian: Section 32, T7N, R1E HB&M

c) Third parcel
i) Assessor Parcel Number:511-111-057
ii) County: Humboldt
iii) Zoning: TPZ
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian: Sec. 29, T7N, R1E HB&M

d) Fourth parcel
i) Assessor Parcel Number:510-011-020
ii) County: Humboldt
iii) Zoning: TPZ
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian: Section 33 T 7N R 1E HB&M

e) Fifth parcel
i) Assessor Parcel Number:510-011-022
ii) County: Humboldt
iii) Zoning:TPZ
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian: 33 T 7N R 1E HB&M

f) Sixth parcel
i) Assessor Parcel Number:509-063-003
ii) County: Humboldt
iii) Zoning: TPZ
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian: Sec. 3;,4;9;10; T 6N, R1E HB&M.

g) Seventh parcel
i) Assessor Parcel Number: 509-062-004
ii) County: Humboldt
iii) Zoning: TPZ

32



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  Page 7 of 6
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 03/2023) 

b) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian: Sec. 3 T 6N, R1E HB&M.

33



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  Page 8 of 6
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 03/2023) 

Additional Information 
1) Landowners with less than 500 acres of forestland receive 90% cost-share reimbursement.

Does the landowner own < 500 acres of forestland in California?  Yes  No
2) Timber site productivity. For timber site productivity, the landowner will need to consult with

a RPF. If you have an existing forest management plan, NTMP, or past harvest plan, this
value is often documented with the tree growth information.
a) Check all the site productivity classes present within the project area:

 I  II  III  IV  V 
b) If more than one site class is present in the project area, calculate the weighted average
within the project area and round to the closest site index. For example, if there are 10 acres
of site II and 20 acres of site III for a total project area of 30 acres, the weighted average
equals (2*10/30 + 3*20/30 = 2.66) and you would enter site III.

 I  II  III  IV  V 
3) Substantially damaged timberland means areas of timberland where wildfire, insects,

disease, wind, flood, or other blight caused by an act of God occurs after January 1, 1976
and the damage reduced stocking below the requirements of the Forest Practice Act. The
following are the minimum stocking levels: 300 point count (site III or better), 150 point count
(site IV, V) or 85 ft2 (site I or II), 50 ft2 (site III, IV, V). Areas substantially damaged are
subject to 90% cost share assistance. Does the area proposed for CFIP funding include
substantially damaged timberland?

 No 
 Yes 

If yes, explain the cause and timing and include the area on the project map: 

Grantee Certification 
The below certification shall be completed by the Grantee, only; not by Participant(s) / Additional 
Landowner(s). If the Grantee is not a natural person, this certification is to be completed by the 
natural person whose name is listed on the STD 204 Payee Data Record associated with this 
application. 
I certify that the above and attached is true and correct to the best of my knowledge:  

Grantee’s Printed Name: Pat Kaspari 

Grantee’s Signature: 

Date: 9/30/2024 

34



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY                                   Optional Page                                                               
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 02/2023) 
 

CFIP APPLICATION - CONTINUATION SHEET 

Contact information 
Participant(s) / Additional Landowner(s) (continued from Page 1) 

Name:      
Title:      
Mailing Address 

Street:      
City, State Zip Code:      

 Phone Number:      
  E-mail Address:      
 

Name:      
Title:      
Mailing Address 

Street:      
City, State Zip Code:      

 Phone Number:      
E-mail Address:      
 
Name:      
Title:      
Mailing Address 

Street:      
City, State Zip Code:      

 Phone Number:      
  E-mail Address:      
 

Name:      
Title:      
Mailing Address 

Street:      
City, State Zip Code:      

 Phone Number:      
E-mail Address:      

  

35



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  Optional Page  
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
CFIP APPLICATION 
RM-6 (REV. 02/2023) 

CFIP APPLICATION - CONTINUATION SHEET 

Additional Location Information (continued from Page 5) 
c) Seventh parcel

i) Assessor Parcel Number:
ii) County:
iii) Zoning:
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian:

d) Eighth parcel
i) Assessor Parcel Number:
ii) County:
iii) Zoning:
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian:

e) Ninth parcel
i) Assessor Parcel Number:
ii) County:
iii) Zoning:
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian:

f) Tenth parcel
i) Assessor Parcel Number:
ii) County:
iii) Zoning:
iv) Section, Township, Range, Base & Meridian:

36



Resolution 2024 – 25       December 4, 2024    Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION 2024 – 25 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY 
SERVICE DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ACT AS AUTHORIZED 

AGENT AND ENTER INTO CONTRACTS AS PART OF THE CALIFORNIA FOREST 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION 

WHEREAS, the McKinleyville Community Services District is committed to the conservation and 
improvement of the McKinleyville Community Forest; and 

WHEREAS, the California Forest Improvement Program (CFIP) provides grants to support high 
quality timber supplies, related employment and other economic benefits, and the protection, 
maintenance, and enhancement of a productive and stable forest resource system for the 
benefit of present and future generations; and 

WHEREAS,  the McKinleyville Community Services District seeks to apply for a CFIP grant to 
fund the development of a Forest Management Plan for the McKinleyville Community Forest; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to authorize the General Manager to submit grant documents and 
enter into a contract with the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) 
as part of the grant application process; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the McKinleyville 
Community Services District hereby authorize and direct the General Manager to act as the 
authorized agent and prepare, sign, and submit all necessary documents, including but not 
limited to the grant application, contracts, and agreements, required to secure funding from the 
California Forest Improvement Program. 

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
McKinleyville Community Services District on December 4, 2024 by the following polled vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

___________________________________ 
Scott Binder, Board President 

Attest: 

______________________________ 
Joey Blaine, Board Secretary 

ITEM D.4 ATTACHMENT 2

37



38



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024    TYPE OF ITEM: ACTION 

ITEM: D.5 Consider Appointment of Nancy Morelli as Alternate Public 
Member of the Trails, Infrastructure, Clean-Ups, and 
Security Subcommittee 

PRESENTED BY: James Henry, MCSD Operations Director 

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call – Consent Calendar 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the Board review the information provided and recommend that 
Nancy Morelli is appointed as an Alternate Public Member of the Trails, Infrastructure, 
Clean-Ups, and Security Community Forest Subcommittee.  

Discussion: 
During the October 15th MCFC meeting, the committee voted to recommend the 
following applicants to the MCSD Board of Directors to fill the five public member seats 
on the TICS Subcommittee: Charlie Caldwell, Kenneth Burton, Phil Heidrick, Shaun 
Fyfe, and Justin Brown to the five public member seats on TICS Subcommittee. 
During the November 6th McKinleyville Community Services District Board meeting, the 
Directors voted to accept the recommendation and appoint those five members. During 
that discussion, the Directors also recommend that the McKinleyville Community Forest 
Committee consider appointing Nancy Morelli as an alternate public member. Nancy 
was contacted by the General Manager regarding this recommendation, and she said 
she would be interested in the position.  
At the November 19, 2024 McKinleyville Community Forest Committee meeting, the 
Committee recommended that the MCSD Board approve the appointment of Nancy 
Morelli as an Alternate to the TICS. 

Alternatives: 
Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis: 
Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements: 
Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments: 
None 

39



40



Item D.5 Attachment 3

41



42



43



44



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024 TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  D.6 Consider Adoption of Resolution 2024-21 Affirming Board 
Support of the Existing Memorandums of Understanding 
with the Redwood Coast Mountain Bike Association 
(RCMBA) and the Mountain Bike Tribal Trail Alliance 
(MBTTA) 

PRESENTED BY: James Henry, Operations Director 

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the Board review the information provided, discuss, take Public 
Comment and adopt Resolution 2024-21 affirming Board support of the executed 
Memorandums of Understanding with the Redwood Coast Mountain Bike 
Association and the Mountain Bike Tribal Trail Alliance. 

Discussion: 
While the District was in the process of acquiring the Community Forest land from 
Green Diamond Resource Company (GDRC) as part of the grant from the California 
Natural Resources Agency, District Staff met with Board Members from the 
Redwood Coast Mountain Bike Association (RCMBA).  RCMBA had an existing 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with GDRC to provide access to Green 
Diamond land and construct and maintain mountain bike trails on their land.  The 
MOU extended to land that would eventually become McKinleyville Community 
Forest land.  RCMBA was concerned that the work that they had already invested in 
these trails would be lost if they could not also execute an MOU with MCSD.  We 
assured them that we would be happy to continue these discussions and utilize 
RCMBA volunteer support for construction of mountain bike and multipurpose trails 
in the Community Forest. 
After the acquisition of the land by the District, copies of the existing RCMBA MOU 
with Green Diamond, as well as the one they have with Humboldt County for the 
McKay Tract were obtained.  District Staff reworked and combined these MOUs, and 
upon approval of the Ad Hoc Community Forest Committee, submitted the MOU to 
District Legal Counsel for review and editing.  Copies of the MOU were then 
provided to RCMBA for their review and were eventually adopted by RCMBA and 
the District and the MOU executed. 
The Mountain Bike Tribal Trail Alliance (MBTTA) had also been in discussions with 
GDRC about executing a similar MOU. Green Diamond decided not to execute an 
MOU with MBTTA since the transfer of land was eminent.  District Staff and the Ad 
Hoc Community Forest Committee did not feel that it was good precedent to exclude 
any groups that are able to conform to the requirements of the MOU and assist in 
the development of the Community Forest trails and other infrastructure, and 
therefore executed a similar MOU with MBTTA.  

45



The existing MOUs are included as Attachments 2 and 3 to this Staff Note.  As 
detailed in the MOUs, there are extensive benefits to the District and the Community 
for these collaborative partnerships between the District and the mountain bike 
associates including the; “…commitment to supporting recreational trail use, 
expanding access to trails, and enhancing the social and economic benefits of trails 
with the McKinleyville area.” The MOUs provide the necessary protection for the 
District and will assist with the development of the forest.  Staff likely should have 
brought these MOUs to the full Board for approval prior to their final execution but 
are asking the Board to pass Resolution 2024-21 (Attachment 1) affirming the 
MOUs and support of this collaborative partnership. 
At the October 2, 2024 Regular Board Meeting, the Board directed staff to take the 
MOUs through the Trails, Infrastructure, Clean-Ups, and Security (TICS) 
subcommittee and then the McKinleyville Community Forest Committee (MCFC) for 
approval and recommendation now that the Ad Hoc committee has formed into a full 
committee and a subsequent subcommittee has also formed. 
At the October 29, 2024 regular TICS Subcommittee meeting, the Subcommittee 
reviewed Resolution 2024-21 and the MOUs.  The Subcommittee moved to 
recommend approval of these items to MCFC for further recommendation of 
approval by the MCSD Board of Directors.  

At the November 19, 2024 regular McKinleyville Community Forest Committee 
meeting, the MCFC reviewed Resolution 2024-21 and the MOUs.  The Committee 
moved to recommend approval of these items by the MCSD Board of Directors. 

Alternatives: 
Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis: 
A detailed fiscal analysis has not been prepared, but the MOUs are expected to save 
the District considerable costs for the development of trails and other infrastructure 
in the Community Forest. 

Environmental Requirements: 
Not applicable at this time.  The development of trails will conform to the eventual 
Trails and Forest Management Plans and will conform to the necessary local, State 
and Federal permit requirements. 

Exhibits/Attachments: 
• Attachment 1 – Resolution 2024-21
• Attachment 2 – RCMBA MOU
• Attachment 3 – MBTTA MOU

46



Resolution 2024 – 21       December 4, 2024    Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION 2024 – 21 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY 
SERVICE DISTRICT AFFIRMING BOARD SUPPORT FOR THE EXECUTED 

MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH THE REDWOOD COAST MOUNTAIN 
BIKE ASSOCIATION (RCMBA) AND THE MOUNTAIN BIKE TRIBAL TRAILS ALLIANCE 

(MBTTA) 

WHEREAS, McKinleyville Community Services District (the District) has established the 
McKinleyville Community Forest; and 

WHEREAS, the McKinleyville Community Forest property was purchased from Green Diamond 
Resource Company by way of a $3.8 million grant from The Trust for Public Land and the State 
Natural Resources Department; and 

WHEREAS, RCMBA had an existing MOU with Green Diamond Resource Company to build 
mountain bike and multi-use trails and access Green Diamond land, including the lands of the 
future McKinleyville Community Forest; and 

WHEREAS, after the acquisition of the lands of the McKinleyville Community Forest, District 
staff and District Counsel revised and executed an MOU with RCMBA; and 

WHEREAS, the District was approached by MBTTA to execute a similar MOU; and 

WHEREAS, the District is not a position to exclude a group; and 

WHEREAS, the District staff executed the same MOU with MBTTA as they did with RCMBA. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the McKinleyville 
Community Services District does hereby affirm support of the execution of the MOUs with 
RCMBA and MBTTA by District staff. 

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
McKinleyville Community Services District on December 4, 2024 by the following polled vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

___________________________________ 
Scott Binder, Board President 

Attest: 

______________________________ 
Joey Blaine, Board Secretary 

ITEM D.6 ATTACHMENT 1

47



48



ITEM D.6 ATTACHMENT 2

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



ITEM D.6 ATTACHMENT 3

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024   TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM: D.7 Consider Appointment of Applicant, Evan Schwartz to 
Vacant Alternate Seat on the Park and Recreation 
Committee (PARC)  

PRESENTED BY: Kirsten Messmer, Parks & Recreation Director 

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call – Consent Calendar 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board consider the information provided, air 
questions, take public comment and vote on the appointment of Evan Schwartz 
to the Parks and Recreation Committee as an alternate for a term of four (4) 
years.  

Discussion: 
It is the duty of the Board of Directors to vet and select the most qualified 
candidates to become members of the PARC. The Board of Directors is 
obligated to interview all candidates, discuss the candidates’ qualifications, and 
select most qualified candidates to serve on the committee by majority vote. 
There is currently one (1) alternate opening on the PARC.  Staff has posted 
sufficient notice through local media and at District facilities of the vacancies for 
the PARC.  
Evan Schwartz submitted an application (Attachment 1) October 16, 2024.   
Staff shared the application with the PARC at the meeting held on November 20, 
2024.  The PARC unanimously supported appointment of Evan Schwartz as an 
alternate member of the PARC.   

Alternatives: 
Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative:  Do not appoint the 
applicants to the PARC and continue advertising existing open seats. 

Fiscal Analysis: 
Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements: 
Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments: 
• Attachment 1 – Evan Schwartz PARC Application

69



 

 

 

70



ITEM D.7 ATTACHMENT 1

71



 

 

 

72



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024        TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATIONAL 

ITEM:  E.1 Introduction of New District Staff Members  

PRESENTED BY: Kirsten Messmer, Parks & Recreation Director 

TYPE OF ACTION: None 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board review the material provided, take public 
comment, and meet new staff members. 

Discussion: 

Over the past six months, the Parks & Recreation Department has undergone 
significant staffing changes. It is my pleasure to introduce the newest members 
of our team, who have already embraced the challenges of their roles and 
seamlessly integrated into our workplace culture. 

• Mason Hooven joined us as Recreation Coordinator on August 16, 2024,
stepping into the position I vacated during my transition. Mason has already
demonstrated impressive adaptability, managing a wide array of
responsibilities, including facility and park rentals, overseeing programs
such as Tot-letics, Playgroup, and Middle School Dances, coordinating the
Newsletter & Activity Guide, and learning to provide backup support for the
Board Secretary. A Humboldt County native, Mason recently graduated
from Washington State University with a degree in Sport Management and a
minor in Business Administration. His education and passion for recreation
have made him a valuable addition to the team, and his family and friends
are thrilled to have him back in the community.

• Owen Schumpert-Quinlan joined us as a Parks Maintenance Worker on
August 1, 2024. Owen has done an excellent job managing the Saturday
SWAP Crew, with his efforts clearly reflected in the beautifully maintained
Central Avenue landscaping. He approaches additional tasks—such as
hanging blinds or setting up the Hewitt Room for public meetings—with
enthusiasm and skill. A McKinleyville resident, Owen enjoys attending Music
in the Park with his family of four, adding to his strong connection to the
community.

• Brandon Johnson, initially hired as a Seasonal Parks Maintenance
Worker, transitioned to a full-time Parks Maintenance Worker on December
1, 2024, and we couldn't be more excited. Like Owen, Brandon has been
doing an excellent job managing the Saturday SWAP Crew and supporting
Board Meeting setups. Originally from San Diego, Brandon moved to

73



Humboldt in the early 2000s to attend Humboldt State University. After 15 
years back in San Diego, he’s returned to Humboldt with his two teenage 
sons, embracing the local lifestyle with hiking and soccer. His positive 
attitude and eagerness to contribute have made him an indispensable part 
of our team. 

As the Board knows well, our staff are the District’s most valuable asset. This 
group represents a small but vital cross-section of the incredible people who 
serve the District and the McKinleyville community. I cannot emphasize enough 
how fortunate we are to have such talented and committed individuals on our 
team. 

Alternatives: 
Take Action  

Fiscal Analysis:  
Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements:  
Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  
 None 

74



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024         TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  E.2 Consider Approval of Filing a Notice of Exemption for 
Construction of Fischer Lift Station Seismic 
Rehabilitation Project 

PRESENTED BY:  Pat Kaspari, General Manager  

TYPE OF ACTION:  Roll Call 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board review the material provided and approve the 
filing of a Notice of Exemption (NOE) for the construction of the Fischer Lift 
Station Seismic Retrofit and direct the General Manager to sign and file the NOE 
(Attachment 1) with the Humboldt County Clerk within five working days. 

Discussion: 
As the Board is aware, the District has been working on the retrofit of the existing 
building, electrical equipment, pumps, motors and motor control center (MCC) of 
the Fischer Sewer Lift Station. The main objective of this project is to seismically 
retrofit and upgrade the existing Fischer Station, which is the main wastewater lift 
station in McKinleyville. The Fischer Station receives all wastewater from the 
southern half of the District, consisting of a population of approximately 9,000 
people.  It also collects the overflow from the Hiller Lift Station when the 
wastewater flows are too high for Hiller to handle, or if the Hiller Station were to 
become disabled from an earthquake or shut down for other maintenance.  

The station’s generator and automatic transfer switch were recently upgraded 
along with the addition of a Tesla battery back-up unit and will not need to be 
upgraded as part of this project. Most of the rest of the station will require 
upgrading as it was built in the early 70’s and therefore does not meet current 
building code, including the seismic requirements. 

This project is one of several the District is undertaking to increase the seismic 
resiliency of its water and wastewater distribution system. These efforts include 
the 4.5-MG Water Tank Project that currently is under construction, the McCluski 
Tank Replacement Project that is currently in design, as well as the replacement 
of the watermain from Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) under 
the Mad River, and the replacement of the three sewer mains under Highway 
101.  

The District was awarded funding through the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) administered by the 
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) to design, permit 

75



and construct this project. Grant requirements dictate that the project be divided 
into two phases, each with specific work activities. Phase One is currently funded 
in the amount of $269,220 and is limited to project activities to develop 
preliminary design documents and complete environmental and cultural resource 
studies. Funding for Phase Two includes final design and construction and will be 
awarded when FEMA and Cal OES have reviewed the Phase One work and 
completed their NEPA review for the project.  

At the March 6, 2024 Board Meeting, the Board awarded the engineering design 
and environmental services for this project to GHD Inc. GHD’s Phase One 
activities included the preparation of a Basis of Design Report and preliminary 
engineering design. The have submitted the Basis of Design Report and the 30% 
design drawings for District review.  Their work also consisted of a Lead & 
Asbestos Assessment and Report, a wetlands survey and biological assessment 
report and a Coastal Development Permit exemption submittal to Humboldt 
County. A geotechnical study was also performed to assess subsurface 
characteristics and allow the structural engineer to calculate seismic forces and 
design retrofits for the building. 

All project components are categorically exempt from CEQA under Section 
15301(b) – Existing Facilities and Section 15302(c) – Replacement or 
Reconstruction. Section 15301(b) is applicable as the Fischer Lift Station and 
associated pipe, pumps, etc. are existing, publicly owned sewage facilities. The 
facilities will be rehabilitated and/or replaced with no increase in capacity or 
expansion of use. Section 15302(c) is applicable as the Fischer Lift Station 
retrofit will involve reconstruction of existing structures and a facility located on 
the same site with the same purpose and capacity as prior to 
rehabilitation/reconstruction.  
 
Given these findings, a Notice of Exemption for this project should be filed with 
Humboldt County. 

Alternatives: 
Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative: 

• Take No Action 

Fiscal Analysis:  
The seismic retrofit of the Fischer Sewer Lift Station is funded in part by a Hazard 
Mitigation Grant.  The original grant application was for a total project cost of 
$1,582,000 which would be funded by a 75% grant of $1,186,500 with a 25% 
District match of $395,500.   

Phase 1 of the project funding was approved on October 16, 2023 in the total 
amount of $269,220, consisting of $201,915 in Federal funding and a $67,305 
District match.   

The construction of the project is now estimated to be $2.5M, and the contract 
amount for the design, permitting and construction oversight is $410,000 for a 

76



total project cost of approximately $2.9M. This is $1,381,000 over the original 
grant project estimate.  The District will request an increase in grant funding to 
cover the full 75% of the new overall project cost or $2,175,000. If the full grant 
funding is obtained, the District’s match will be $725,000.  If the additional grant 
funding is not obtained, the District’s match will be $1,713,500. Regardless, the 
District’s match will be funded by the Certificates of Participation, Series 2021B-
Sewer bonds.  The Series 2021-B Sewer COPs currently has a fund balance of 
$3,130,941. 

Environmental Requirements:  
This Notice of Exemption fulfills the CEQA permitting requirements.     

Exhibits/Attachments:  
• Attachment 1 – CEQA Notice of Exemption for Fischer Lift Station 

Upgrades and Seismic Retrofit Project 

77



 

 

 

78



 
 

 

 
  
 

  

  
   

   

 

  

 

 
 

 
 
 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   
     

 
  

 
      
 

   

   
 

      
   

 
   

 

 

  

 

  

 

        Statutory Exemptions. State code number:  

          

   

_______________________________________________

Print Form 

Notice of Exemption Appendix E 

 From: (Public Agency):  ____________________________To: Office of Planning and Research 
P.O. Box 3044, Room 113

 _______________________________________________Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 

 County Clerk 
(Address) 

___________________________ 

___________________________ 

County of:  __________________ 

Project Title:  ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Applicant:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Location - Specific: 

Project Location - City: ______________________ Project Location - County: 

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: 

_____________________ 

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:  _____________________________________________________ 

Name of Person or Agency  Carrying Out Project: ________________________________________________ 

Exempt Status:  (check one): 
Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268); 

Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 

Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 

Reasons why project is exempt: 

Lead Agency 
Contact Person: ____________________________ Area Code/Telephone/Extension: _______________ 

If filed by applicant: 
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes No 

Signature: ____________________________ Date: 

Signed by Lead Agency Signed by Applicant 

Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. Date Received for filing at OPR:  
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code. 

_______________ 

Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:  ____________________________________ 

______________________________________________ 

______________ Title: _______________________ 

Revised 2011 

ITEM E.2 ATTACHMENT 1



 

 

 

80



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024      TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  E.3 Adopt Resolution 2024-26, Accepting the Appointments 
of Directors Binder and Orsini in Lieu of Election and 
Schedule a Special Meeting for the Board Secretary to 
Administer the Oath of Office 

PRESENTED BY:  Joey Blaine, Board Secretary 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Roll Call  

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors review the attached information, 
Adopt Resolution 2024-26, accepting the appointments of Directors Binder and 
Orsini in lieu of Election to 4-year terms, and set a date for a Special Meeting for 
the Board Secretary to administer the Oath of Office. 

Discussion: 

On November 5, 2024, the General Election took place. At that time, the MCSD 
Board of Director positions did not go to an election as there was an insufficient 
number of candidates for such an election to take place. Directors Binder and 
Orsini had returned the appropriate election material by the deadline. 

On December 3, 2024, the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors are expected 
to officially appoint Directors Binder and Orsini in lieu of an election.  The 
Directors will officially assume office on December 6, 2024. Both Directors will 
hold their Board position until December 1, 2028, the first Friday in December.  

Resolution 2024-26 will be provided to the Board of Directors at the meeting on 
December 4 after the official canvas of the election has been presented to the 
Humboldt County Board of Directors and all appointments have been made. 

Staff would like to congratulate Scott Binder and Greg Orsini as they continue 
their service to the ratepayers of the McKinleyville Community Services District. 

A special meeting will be scheduled to facilitate the administering of the Oath of 
Office by the Board Secretary to Director Binder and Director Orsini for their new 
term.  The date and time suggested by staff for this meeting is December 10, 
2024 at 2:00 p.m. 

 Alternatives: 
Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

81



• Take no action.

Fiscal Analysis: 
Not applicable 

Environmental Requirements: 
Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments: 
• Attachment 1 – August 21, 2024 Correspondence County of Humboldt

Office of Elections
• Attachment 2 – Resolution 2024-26

82



83



 

 

 

84



 

Resolution 2024-26                           December 4, 2024                                  Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-26 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ACCEPTING THE CERTIFICATION FROM THE HUMBOLDT COUNTY CLERK/REGISTRAR 

OF VOTERS OF RESULTS OF BOARD APPOINTMENTS FOR THE NOVEMBER 5, 2024 
GENERAL ELECTION  

 
WHEREAS, on November 5, 2024, the General Election took place; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to a lack of qualified candidates, the MCSD Board of Directorsl open seats did 
not go to Election; and  
 
WHEREAS, two candidates were recommended to the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors 
to be appointed after the County Registrar of Voters certified the election; and 
 
WHEREAS, at their meeting on December 3, 2024, two candidates, Scott Binder and Greg 
Orsini were appointed by the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors in lieu of election; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the McKinleyville 
Community Services District does hereby accept the certified election results, including the 
appointments of Scott Binder and Greg Orsini in lieu of election.  Each appointed candidate will 
serve a 4-year term as Directors on the Board of Directors of the McKinleyville Community 
Services District. The Board Secretary shall administer the Oath of Office and return originals of 
each Oath of Office to the Humboldt County Elections Office.   
 
ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
McKinleyville Community Services District on December 4, 2024 by the following polled vote: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:  
    
                                   
                       ___________________________________ 

     Scott Binder, Board President 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
Joseph Blaine, Board Secretary 

85



86



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

December 4, 2024 TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATION 
 __________________________________________________________________  

ITEM:  F.3.A Finance & Administration – October Report 

PRESENTED BY: Samantha Howard, Finance Director 

TYPE OF ACTION: None  

FINANCIAL, AUDIT, & BUDGET INFORMATION 

Total Board Travel as of October 31, 2024 is $7,469.51 which is 40.42% of the 
approved $22,100 budget for this item.  (GL# 001/005/501/551 62090/62155-888) 

Audit/Budget Update: 

The District’s external auditors were at the District office November 18-20th and have 
completed the final field work for the 23/24 annual audit. Staff are still waiting for the 
OPEB Actuarial Report from GovInvest which is required for the auditors to finalize their 
review. Currently, the auditors expect to have the first draft of the financial statements 
by January 2025 in hopes of issuing the final report in February 2025. 

Treasurer's Report Highlights: 

Reports included in October’s Treasurer’s Report are still DRAFTS as the auditors work 
to finalize the 23/24 Financial Statements. 

The Activity Summaries by Fund provides information on revenues and expenses or 
expenditures for each fund by month for the full fiscal year. The Water and Wastewater 
funds are listed first, followed by the graphs showing revenue versus expenses versus 
budgets. Parks, Measure B, and Streetlights information is given next, with 
accompanying graphs for each. Grant Revenue has also been added to the graphs for 
Water, Sewer, and Parks.  

Now that most year-end adjusting journal entries have been completed, July revenues 
and expenses have been updated for each fund. With these adjustments, Wastewater is 
now showing a negative interest expense for July; this is due to the reversal of accrued 
interest from year end and is normal for interest charges that cross fiscal years. 

Other Updates:  Continued on next page. 

87



Interviews have begun for the Finance Specialist position. It is senior staff’s hope to 
have a candidate selected by mid-December with a start date before, or near, the first of 
the year. 
 
Money Market interest earned at Umpqua Bank in October was $9,540.09 which brings 
the Money Market balance to just over $4.6 million. In December, staff will be reviewing 
and discussing upcoming capital expenditures and deciding on the amount of funds to 
move into California CLASS where it will earn higher yields.  

88



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024                                              TYPE OF ITEM: INFORMATION 

ITEM:  F.3.B  Operations Department – October/Nov 2024 Report 

PRESENTED BY: James Henry, Operations Director 

TYPE OF ACTION:  None 

Water Department: 

Water Statistics: 
The district pumped 41.2 million gallons of water in October. 
Four water quality complaints were investigated and rectified. 
Daily, weekly and monthly inspections of all water facilities were conducted.  
 
Double Check Valve Testing:  
Testing of DCV’s in Route 17 and 18 were conducted in October. Customers with failed 
DCV’s were notified to make repairs and call the office to schedule a retest.  
 
Average and Maximum Water Usage: 
The maximum water usage day was 1.7 million gallons and the average usage per day 
was 1.3 million gallons.  
    
Water Distribution Maintenance: 
Weekly Bacteria Samples were collected on Schedules 1, 2, 3 and 4 which represent 
different locations in the water distribution system. The schedules are made up of a 
sample taken in each pressure zone. There was a new sidewalk section replaced due to 
needing to go through it to install a new service on Cottonwood. Staff observed the Fire 
Department flow testing at the Central Avenue trailer park. Offsite meters are being 
located, brushed out and marked to make them easier to find during an emergency and 
service orders. Staff has been inspecting distribution air relief valves and repairing them 
if needed. As Built review is in process. Each valve is compared to the valves on GIS to 
make sure inventory and labeling is correct.  
 
Water Station Maintenance: 
Monthly inspections and daily routines were conducted at the water stations. Any minor 
issues found are repaired during inspections, but if they require parts or extensive labor, 
the issue is documented on the monthly sheet, which will then generate a work order for 
repairs. Pump One at Northbank has been going into fault mode. Staff has narrowed it 
down to the VFD and are working with the manufacturer to locate the issue. Stations 
held up great during the storm event due to the excellent maintenance program in 
place. Only two sites lost power due to PG&E issues and ran on back-up generators.  
 
 
 
 

89



 
As of July 2014, the District is required to submit a Public Water Monthly Monitoring 
Report to compare water usage to last year’s usage in the same month. I will keep the 
Board updated each month using the Table below.  
  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
R-GPCD = Residential Gallons Per Capita Day 
 
 
 

0
20
40
60
80

Water Usage

2013 MG 2023/24 MG % Reduction R-GPCD /gallons

 2013 
(MG) 

2023/24 
(MG) % Reduction R-GPCD 

October  39.439 38.843 2 59 

November 34.879 36.315 (-4) 51 

December 34.879 36.333 (-3) 49 

January 38.241 35.266 8 48 

February 33.751 33.388 1 49 

March 36.244 35.425 3 51 

April 39.755 35.754 11 48 

May 49.407 44.278 11 49 

June 51.337 45.509 11 59 

July 54.757 50.797 8 65 

August 55.908 46.175 18 69 

September 45.702 42.568 7 64 

October 39.439 41.252 (-4) 57 

90



 
New Construction Inspections:  
Midtown Court Tract: The manhole was installed on Railroad along with 60 feet of sewer 
main and 2” pressure main. The water main is currently being installed and inspected.   
 
Sewer Department: 
 
Wastewater Statistics: 
24.7 million gallons of wastewater were collected and pumped to the WWMF. 24.7 
million gallons of wastewater were treated and discharged to NPDES Permit site REC-
001 Land disposal in October. Staff did switch over to NPDES Permit EFF-001 River 
Discharge on November 18th.  
 
Sewer Station Maintenance: 
Monthly inspections and daily routines were conducted at all sewer stations. Fischer 
station comminutor was replaced as part of the 4 year replacement cycle. A rebuilt 
channel monster is placed in the headworks and the existing one is pulled out and 
rebuilt for the next replacement cycle. The air compressor that runs the bubbler system 
at the Fischer station was replaced due to failure of the existing one and causing false 
level readings in the wetwell. Staff did inventory on all the sewer pump parts and placed 
an order to restock the shelves with needed parts. The B Street station was serviced as 
part of the quarterly maintenance plan. During this time, pumps were inspected, and the 
wet well washed. This is done to prevent hydrogen sulfide build up which can 
deteriorate the concrete walls along with removing rags and debris to prevent plugging 
up the pumps. 
 
Sewer Collection System: 
Grease traps were inspected at required facilities. Customers that are out of compliance 
were notified to have their traps pumped and possibly shorten their pumping schedule. 
Staff has been monitoring the sewer flow in manholes using the Smartcover flow 
totalizers. This data will be compared to the dry weather flow to try locating areas where 
inflow and infiltration is entering the sewer mains. These devices will be moved around 
to selected manholes during the winter. The Central Ave sewer main was cleaned and 
inspected with a camera and warranty work was performed by the contractor on a 
couple of sections that failed. The Semi annual hydro-cleaning schedule was completed 
using the vac-con and high pressured water through a spinning nozzle to clean 8,200’ of 
sewer mains. This is done to remove grease and grit from the mains which could 
accumulate and possibly cause a sewer spill.  
 
Wastewater Management Facility: 
Daily and weekly maintenance continues at the treatment plant to perform required 
service on the equipment. Site mowing was conducted along with scheduled 
maintenance on equipment. The WAS pump was replaced per the 3 year maintenance 
cycle. The existing pump will be rebuilt and placed on the shelf for the next 
replacement. Tubing was replaced on the CL2 analyzer due to the tubing showing wear.  
 
Daily Irrigation and Observation of Reclamation Sites: 
River discharge started back up in November.  
 

91



Street Light Department:  
There were no streetlight complaints in October. 
  
 
Promote Staff Training and Advancement:   
Weekly tailgate meetings and training associated with job requirements. Staff received 
training on Defensive Driving, Welding Safety and Bloodborne Pathogens. 
 
Special Notes: 
Monthly river samples were completed. 
Monthly Self-Monitoring Reports (DMR/SMR) were submitted. 
Public Water Monthly Monitoring report was submitted. 
Monthly Water Quality report was sent to the Dept. of Health. 
Monthly Drought and Conservation report was completed 
Attended Micro-Grid meetings 
Attended meetings and inspections for 4.5 MG Tank project 
Attended Community Forest meetings and Sub-committee meetings 
Attended CWEA meeting and worked on calendar of events and trainings 
Submitted the annual DMRQA testing. 
Reviewed several design questions regarding the Fischer Sta. Upgrade. 
Attended meetings regarding Food truck permitting and inspections 
Reviewed Beau Pre Plans and sent comments to developer 
 
GIS: 
 

Plans & Programs 

• Annual Review of the Hand & Power tools Safety Plan 
o No revisions to be made at this time 

 
General GIS/ Maps Created 

• Water Valve/Hydrant/Blow Off GIS facilities matching to water As Builts 
o Worked with Facility Inspector to make sure the following facilities have 

been added to As Builts and are accurate in the GIS. 
o Created a spreadsheet with all assets for easier numbering of new assets 

in the future 
o Found numerous Valves, B.O.s and Hydrants with duplicate numbers and 

will be working to ensure each has unique value  
• Water Model Updating  

o Began adding newer sections of pipe because of the increased pipe count 
allowed to the District’s WaterCad Subscription 

• Facilities Map Updates 
o Edited numerous Valves, Blow offs and Hydrants to match As Builts  
o Updated numerous Parcel changes  

• Inspection Workflows  
o Reset Manhole and Cleanout Inspections  
o Reset Hydrant Inspections from Painting to general Inspection 

92



 
Misc. Work Completed 

• USA’s & Document Filing 
• Lead Service Line Inventory Grant funding Application 

o Reached out to waterboards and was told Environmental Package will be 
needed to complete application to receive approval  

• Community Forest clear cut area pictures for GM 
o Uploaded to the P-Drive 

 

93



94



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

December 4, 2024                      TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATION 

ITEM: F.3.C Parks & Recreation Director’s Report for November 2024 

PRESENTED BY:  Kirsten Messmer, Parks & Recreation Director 

TYPE OF ACTION:  None  

 
TEEN & COMMUNITY CENTER-BOYS & GIRLS CLUB PARTNERSHIP: 
Staff continues to meet with BGCR staff weekly.  The Teen Club hours of Monday-Friday 
2:00pm-6:00pm. The Teen Club runs a wide variety of programs including a weekly 
cooking program, a cycling program, an art program, a community service program and 
several BGCA national programs such as Power Hour, SMART Girls, SMART Moves and 
Youth for Unity. The Club’s average daily attendance reached 25-30 teens per day this 
month.  

PARK AND RECREATION COMMITTEE: 
The Park and Recreation Committee (PARC) met on November 20, 2024.  The Approved 
Minutes from the October 16 PARC Meeting can be reviewed in Attachment 1.  

BMX TRACK & PARK PROJECT: 
Melton Design Group completed the final construction bid documents, which were 
released on March 22, 2024. At the June 5th Board Meeting, the contract was awarded to 
the lowest responsive bidder, F. Loduca Co., with initial tree work commencing on August 
19. 

During the Grading Permit process, the contractor encountered additional requirements 
from County Building & Planning. The first step, a General Plan Conformance review, was 
successfully approved by the Planning Commission on September 19. Subsequently, on 
October 28, we addressed final comments from the County Building Department with a 
resubmission of the Correction Plans. 

Recently, the County Building & Planning provided additional questions, which are 
currently being addressed. On November 25, MCSD staff met with representatives from F. 
Loduca Co. and Melton Design Group to discuss next steps. 

We anticipate securing the necessary permit by early January 2025. Construction is 
tentatively scheduled to begin on April 2, 2025, after the rainy season concludes. 

MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY FOREST COMMITTEE: 
The McKinleyville Community Forest Committee (MCFC) met on November 19, 2024.  The 
Approved Minutes from the October 15 MCFC Meeting can be reviewed in Attachment 2.  

COMMUNITY FOREST UPDATES: 

The McKinleyville Community Forest Committee (MCFC) held its latest meeting on 

95



November 19, 2024, in the Azalea Hall Hewitt Room. The MCFC committee 
recommended that Nancy Morelli as an alternate committee applicant for appointment to 
the TICS Subcommittee.  The MCSD Board of Directors will review this recommendation 
at its December 4th meeting. 
 
The MCFC also recommended that the MCSD Board adopt Resolution 2024-21 Affirming 
Board Support of the Existing MOUs with RCMBA and MBTTA at their December 4th 
Board Meeting. 
 
The TICS Subcommittee convened on October 29 in the MCSD Office Conference Room 
at 5:00 pm.  The next meeting will be on November 26, after this packet was published. 
 
The FMPFB Subcommittee held its first meeting on November 5 in the MCSD Office 
Conference Room at 4:30 pm. The subcommittee appointed Kevin Creed as Chairperson, 
Maya Conrad as Vice Chairperson, and Pat Kaspari as Secretary, decided on hybrid 
meeting accessibility, and reviewed the Forest Management Plan with BBW staff, outlining 
necessary tasks for plan completion. As of now, there are no public applications for 
membership on this subcommittee. 
 
RECREATION PROGRAM UPDATES 
Recreation Program Updates 
• Drop-in Pickleball is back on its normal school year schedule: Monday, Wednesday 

and Friday mornings 9:00am to 12:00pm at the McKinleyville Activity Center. Drop in 
is $4 per person.   

• Beginning Pickleball will have two fall sessions. Session 1 is November 7-21 on 
Thursday evenings from 6-8pm. Session 2 is December 5-19 on Thursday evenings 
from 6-8pm. Registration is full for Session 1. The Class Fee is $40 for residents and 
$45 for non-residents.   

• Drop-in Kung Fu is on Tuesday and Thursday evenings 5:30pm-7:00pm $10 per 
person per class. Bulk class passes are available to purchase at $7.50 per class. 

• Drop-in Tai Chi is Sundays 11:00am-12:00pm $10 per person per class. Bulk class 
passes are available to purchase at $7.50 per class. The Martial Arts classes are 
averaging 5-8 people per class.  

• Fast Break Friday’s is a drop-in basketball program for youth ages 13 to 17.  Drop-in 
is $5 per participant.  It is averaging 18-20 participants per week.  

• Staff are preparing for the upcoming Youth Basketball Season. As usual the Season 
runs January – March for 3rd-8th Graders. Registration is happening now, so far 143 
players have signed up. 

• Sunday Night drop-in Basketball is averaging 8-10 participants per week.  
• Playgroup for children 0-5 years old runs every Thursday from 10:30am-12:30pm 

through the school year minus Holiday Break Weeks.  
• The Tot-letics Basketball Sessions has finished. The next Tot-letics session will be 

Soccer and will run March 8-April 5, 2025.  
• Due to the way the Holidays land there will not be a Breakout camp for Christmas or 

New Years Week. There will be Breakout for President’s Week and Spring Break 
week.  

• The last Cooking Basics Class for Kids focused on Bread and Soup, and it had 7/8 
spots filled.  The next class will likely be scheduled after the holidays. These classes 
take place in the Teen Center Kitchen on Saturdays. 

96



• The upcoming Middle School Dances for the 24-25 school year have been 
scheduled. Five different PTOs reached out with an interest to partner on a dance. 
Four PTOs were selected lotto style via zoom. The line up for next year will be: 

o Friday, October 25, 2024 – Blue Lake PTO Coastal Grove PTO 
o 267 Middle Schoolers attended the first dance!  

o Friday, December 6, 2024 – McKinleyville Schools PTO 
o Friday, February 7, 2025 – Jacoby Creek PTO 
o Friday, April 18, 2025 – Pacific Union PTO 

 
 

PARK & FACILITY MAINTENANCE UPDATES: 
The Parks crew and NHES continue the routine schedule for landscape maintenance on 
Central Avenue and Open Space Zone landscaping.  The Maintenance crew is working 
hard to catch up on the summer growth in all our landscaping areas.  The Saturday SWAP 
crews have been doing a great job working on the Central Avenue OSMZs.  Staff continue 
to keep up with daily/weekly routine facility and vehicle maintenance. Monthly inspections 
were conducted on all facilities and Open Spaces. Staff have been making the most out of 
our turn’s use of the shared Flail Mower, tackling multiple areas needed around Hiller 
Park. 
 
FACILITY RENTALS & USE 
November Rentals: 
• 12 Azalea Hall Rentals plus a weekly and a bi-weekly meeting room rental.  
• 4 Pierson Park Rentals. 
• 1 Teen Center Rentals. 
• 3 Activity Center rentals and 4 Birthday Party Program Rentals in the Activity Center.   
• The Teen Center Kitchen has one regular Vendor renting it for food preparation.  
• The Azalea Hall Kitchen has two regular Vendors renting it for food preparation.  

 
OTHER UPDATES: 
• Staff continues to work with MUSD to provide staff for the school districts after school 

programs. 
• Staff continues to participate as members of the McKinleyville Chamber of 

Commerce Board of Directors, as well as serving on Fundraising Committees for the 
Boys & Girls Club of the Redwoods.  

• Staff continues to provide support to other departments of the District; assisting with 
accounts payable. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
• Attachment 1 – 2024-10-16 Approved PARC Meeting Minutes 
• Attachment 2 – 2024-10-15 Approved MCFC Meeting Minutes 

  

97



98



ITEM F.3.B ATTACHMENT 1

99



100



101



102



ITEM F.3.B ATTACHMENT 2

103



104



105



106



McKinleyville Community Services District 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Dec. 4, 2024       TYPE OF ITEM:  INFORMATIONAL 

ITEM: F.3.D General Manager’s Report for Dec. 4, 2024 Meeting 

PRESENTED BY: Patrick Kaspari, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION: Information Only  

A summary of activity for the month of November 2024 

Cost Savings Related to District Activities – The following is a review of some of the 
recent cost savings opportunities District staff identified for the month: 

• Use of NHE Services =   $3,692 
• WEX Labor Reimbursement =     $0 
• SWAP =  $3,600 
• Volunteer Pickleball Labor = $906 
• CSW =  $1,440 
• Amazon Savings =   $60 
• Umpqua fee waivers & new interest rate =       $10,320 
• Identify Fischer Elec Runs for Upgrade =      $450 
• Repair Lights at WWMF Mech Bldg = $255 
• Replace Comminutor at Fischer = $520 
• Reconfigure BSB Storm Outfall = $910 
• Replace WWMF WAS Pump = $520 
• Repair Camera Trailer & Camera = $850 

TOTAL COST SAVINGS FOR NOV. =        $23,523 

   TOTAL CURRENT COST SAVINGS FOR FY 24/25 = $162,073 

This represents real saving that the District staff should be recognized and commended 
for.  This represents savings that are passed onto the District’s ratepayers and the 
community. 

4.5 Gallon Water Tank Project –  The physical structure of the tank is complete. 
Mercer Fraser is working on the installation of the waterline to the tank and the drainline 
from the tank.  We still need to leak test the tank and those items need to be completed 
before we can fill it with water. They also need to complete the rest of the underground 

107



piping, backfill around the tank, construct the road, and add the ladders and hatches. 
Colburn Electric has started on the construction of the upgrade to the electrical system 
and generator.  Still a lot of work to get done by the current contract completion date of 
February 14, 2025. 

The total construction base bid is $11,642,475 and 10% contingency of $1,164,248 
totals $12,806,723.  The overall project amount is $14,471,094. The project is funded by 
$9,617,085 in Hazard Mitigation Grant funding, $879,209 in North Coast Resource 
Partnership/DWR Prop. 1, Round 2 funding, for a total in grant funding for this project of 
$10,496,294. The District’s $3,174,800 of matching funding will be provided by the 
Certificates of Participation, Series 2021A-Water bonds. The 2023/24 FY CIP budget 
had $9,000,000 budgeted, and the 2024/25 FY CIP budget has budgeted the final $9M. 

Sewer Undercrossing Project – FEMA has still not completed their National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) review and issued a Finding of No Significant Impact 
(FONSI) to release the Phase 2 funding of the grant to fund the final design and 
construction of the project. Pacific Legacy completed the fieldwork required for the 
FEMA requested additional Cultural Resources survey in June 2023 and submitted their 
Report of Findings in September 2023.  The Pacific Legacy’s Report has been 
forwarded to FEMA and they forwarded it on to the State Historic Preservation Office as 
well as the local Tribal Historic Preservation Officers.   FEMA is now working on 
completing NEPA and hopefully releasing the Phase 2 funding.  We continue to request 
status updates from them. 

This project is funded by a Hazard Mitigation Grant from FEMA/CalOES. The original 
grant request was $3,384,400 and an additional request for a total project cost of 
$6,897,400, which, if approved, would fund $5,173,050 in grant and the District would 
match $1,725,350.  This fiscal years budget included $100,000 for this project, to 
hopefully finish the design, with $1M budgeted for the 2025/26 and $6M budgeted for 
the 2026/27 Fiscal Years.  The District’s match was intended to be funded from the 
Certificates of Participation, Series 2021B-Sewer bonds.  If the project continues to be 
delayed, the Sewer Bond funds may need to be spent on different sewer projects. 

Office Remodel – LDA Partners continues to work on the Office Remodel design. LDA 
submitted Draft Plans in September 2024 and District Staff completed a final review and 
commenting. LDA has moved into the final design plans and specifications.  They still 
owe the District a final construction cost estimate as well.  We’ll see what the Engineer’s 
Construction Costs Estimate comes back at and make final decisions on when/if we 
want to go out to bid. The funding for this project has not yet been secured, but Staff is 
pursuing funding through the State Water Resources Control Board, Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund grant/loan program. 

108



McCluski/Hewitt Tank Replacement Project – This project, consisting of the 
replacement of the two existing redwood tanks at the west end of Hewitt Ave on 
McCluski Hill, is waiting for FEMA to complete NEPA for the project and release Phase 
2 grant funding.  The existing 100,000 gallon and 150,000-gallon redwood tanks will be 
replaced with two, 200,000-gallon, glass-fused lined, bolted steel tanks.  The Phase 1 
grant funding included the completion of the Biological and other Special Studies as well 
as Geotech assessment and 65% design drawings.  Kennedy Jenks completed the 
initial Preliminary Design Report and initial Design Drawings as well as the final 
Environmental Documents. The Phase 1 documents were submitted to CalOES and 
FEMA in February 2024 to close out the Phase 1 portion of the grant.  District Staff is 
working on a request for additional grant funding, and then we will wait for the Phase 2 
grant funding to be released for the final design, bidding and construction of the tanks. 

This first phase of the work cost $155,750 overall which includes a $38,938 District 
match. This work was included in the 2024/25 Fiscal Year budget, with $200k budget for 
this FY to complete the design, and $2M budget for the 2025/26 FY and $2M budget for 
the 2026/27 FY. The overall grant cost estimate for this project was estimated to be 
$1.44 Million, with 75% Federal Funding ($1,079,038.50) and a 25% District match 
($359,679.50).  However, the initial Preliminary Design Report estimated construction 
cost at $4.64M.  As mentioned, we will submit a request to see if there is additional 
grant funding available from FEMA/CalOES for this increased construction costs.   

Fischer Lift Station Upgrade Project – The District received a Phase 1 Hazard 
Mitigation Grant for the upgrade of the Fischer Sewer Lift station in November 2023.  
The grant will cover the complete retrofit of the Fischer Lift Station, which pumps 
wastewater from the entire southern half of McKinleyville to the wastewater 
management facility.  This would include the replacement of the pumps and upgrading 
the electrical system, valves, and further seismically strengthen the building. GHD is 
finalizing the environmental and geotechnical work required for the CEQA/NEPA 
permitting and design.  They anticipated that the design and environmental 
documentation will be completed and submitted to CalOES by the end of 2024, but 
unfortunately, they realized that a County Coastal Development Permit is also required.  
This will not be able to be completed by the end of the year.  The District has submitted 
an extension request to CalOES which was approved in November 2024 and extends 
the grant out to August 2025. 

The seismic retrofit of the Fischer Sewer Lift Station is funded in part by a Hazard 
Mitigation Grant.  The original grant application was for a total project cost of 
$1,582,000 which would be funded by a 75% grant of $1,186,500 with a 25% District 
match of $395,500.  Phase 1 of the project funding was approved on October 16, 2023 

109



in the total amount of $269,220, consisting of $201,915 in Federal funding and a 
$67,305 District match. The construction of the project is now estimated to be $2.5M, 
and the contract amount for the design, permitting and construction oversight is 
$410,000 for a total project cost of approximately $2.9M. This is $1,381,000 over the 
original grant project estimate.  The District will request an increase in grant funding to 
cover the full 75% of the new overall project cost or $2,175,000. If the full grant funding 
is obtained, the District’s match will be $725,000.  If the additional grant funding is not 
obtained, the District’s match will be $1,713,500. Regardless, the District’s match will be 
funded by the Certificates of Participation, Series 2021B-Sewer bonds.  The Series 
2021-B Sewer COPs currently has a fund balance of $3,130,941. 

Microgrid Project – The microgrid project is completed.  We are working through some 
bugs, mainly associated with the battery system and controls and switching from the 
batteries after a power outage.  The Control engineer is supposed to be out the week of 
December 2nd to review those issues.   

As part of the project bid, the winning contractors, Ameresco Inc., agreed to perform 10-
years of operation and maintenance as well as reporting.  We are working with them to 
finalize the O&M and Reporting contract as well as finalizing what the reports are to look 
like and the information contained in them.  We are close to finalizing the contract.  We 
will bring the first report back to the Board, and were hoping to do that in December, but 
it will probably be the February Board meeting. 

We have also been pursuing the Inflation Reduction Act tax credit for this project.  We 
submitted the request to the IRS back in June and finally got the go ahead to submit the 
tax credit for this project.  Jackson & Eklund just assisted the District in the completion 
of the tax forms, and they were submitted to the IRS at the end of November 2024.  If 
we are found to qualify, we would receive a $1,776,720 tax credit.  Ameresco also 
exceeded their contract amount, and we had discussions with them during construction, 
that if we receive this tax credit, we would likely issue them a change order to fund 
some of their overages. 

Reporting by County Department – A regular meeting has been scheduled with 
President Binder, GM Kaspari, Supervisor Madrone, and the MMAC Chair, Lisa Dugan. 
Jesse Miles, the Executive Director of the McKinleyville Chamber of Commerce, and 
Chris Emmons, Arcata Fire District Chief, have also begun to join us for these meetings. 
These meetings occur on the fourth Monday of every month to discuss various topics of 
concern to all organizations and the community. The meetings in November and 
December have been cancelled and will start up again in 2025. 

110



Grant Applications – As discussed at this December Board Meeting, we are pursuing 
funding from the California Dept. of Forestry and Fire Protection for the California Forest 
Improvement Program (CFIP) for the completion of the Community Forest Management 
Plan.   

As discussed and approved at the November Board Meeting, we are also pursing 
funding from the CAL FIRE Forest Health Program to fund the shaded fuel break and 
thinning of the Community Forest to prevent wildfires. We will continue to look for other 
funding opportunities. 

The Mad River Watermain Crossing Hazard Mitigation Grant application was submitted 
to CalOES in March 2021.  We heard in December 2021 that the project had been 
forwarded by CalOES to FEMA for funding.  We still have not received a grant 
agreement for this project. 

The Federal Bipartisan Infrastructure Law funding that we will have access to will be run 
through the EPA funded Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
Programs. The SRF funding in California is run through the State Water Resources 
Control Board.  As discussed with the Board at the December 7, 2022 Board Meeting, 
we have submitted a Clean Water SRF application for funding the retrofit of the Fischer 
and B Street Lift Stations, which are two of our highest priority Capital Improvement 
Projects.  As discussed at the August 7, 2024 Board Meeting, we are also submitting 
SRF grant applications for the replacements of all of the sewer forcemains in the 
system, as well as retrofits of the Letz and Kelly Lift Stations.  We are also submitting 
SRF applications for the remodel of the office. All the grant applications will be 
submitted by early 2025.  They will be considered for funding in the 2024/25 Fiscal Year 
but will also remain in the que if not funded this year for consideration in next Fiscal 
Year as well. 

We are also finishing up the design and assessment as part of the Recycled Water 
Grant for the Pialorsi property.  We are in the process of turning this Planning Grant into 
a Construction grant application for the construction of the recycled water irrigation 
infrastructure for the Pialorsi property as well as upgrading the existing irrigation system 
for the Fischer property. 

Other Work – November was busy with the ongoing construction of the 4.5MG tank 
and our regular construction meetings and work associated with that.  We continue to 
work on the Microgrid project as well, meeting with Ameresco and GHD on the transition 
phase between construction and operations.  District legal counsel and Staff reviewed 
an Operations MOU with Ameresco and we are working out the language.  The 
Community Forest continues to take up time with meetings.  We also continue to hold 

111



design meetings with GHD on the Fischer Lift Station upgrade project and the Central 
Avenue Water & Sewer Rehab one year warranty review. The BMX Park construction is 
also slowly moving forward.  The Contractor is working on his grading permit from the 
County, which also triggered a General Plan conformance meeting with the Humboldt 
County Planning Commission and a building permit review from the County. Staff is also 
working on the approach to implement the new Food Truck regulations. The GM also 
attended a Community Forest Committee meeting, and the MCF Forest Management 
Plan Subcommittee meeting, a HBMWD Muni Meeting,  Rotary and other meetings. 
Things continue to be very busy at the District.  

Attachments: Attachment 1 – WWMF Monthly Self-Monitoring Report 

112



ITEM F.3.D ATTACHMENT 1

113



114



115


	Agenda December 4, 2024
	D.1 (Staff Report) Approve Board Meeting Minutes
	D.1.1 (Attachment 1) November 6, 2024 Minutes
	D.2 October 2024 Treasurer's Report
	D.3 (Action Item) DCV Violations
	D.4 (Staff Report) CFIP Resolution
	D.4.1 (Attachment 1) MCSD CFIP_Application_2024
	CFIP APPLICATION
	Instructions
	Contact information
	Grantee
	Participant(s) / Additional Landowner(s)
	Registered Professional Forester (RPF)
	Responsible Person

	Landowner Eligibility Information
	Property Eligibility Information
	Management Plan and California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Review
	Location
	Additional Information
	Grantee Certification
	Contact information
	Participant(s) / Additional Landowner(s) (continued from Page 1)

	Additional Location Information (continued from Page 5)


	D.4.2 (Attachment 2) Resolution 2024-25
	D.5 (Staff Report) Appointment of Nancy Morelli to TICS
	D.5.1 (Attachment 1) Nancy Morelli
	D.6 (Action) Approve Mountain Bike MOUs Res 2024-21
	D.6.1 (Attachment 1) Resolution 2024-21
	D.6.2 (Attachment 2) MCSD RCMBA  MOU (05.14.24) signed
	D.6.3 (Attachment 3) MCSD MBTTA  MOU (03.29.24) signed
	D.7 (Staff Report) Consider Appointment to the Parks and Recreation Committee (PARC)
	D.7.1 (Attachment 1) PARC Application - Evan Schwartz_Redacted
	E.1 (Staff Note) Recognition of Staff
	E.2 (Staff Report) Fischer Lift Station Retro NOE
	E.2.1 (Attachment 1)_Fischer_NOE
	E.3 (Staff Report) Special Meeting_Swearing In
	E.3.1 (Attachment 1) 2024-08-19 County Correspondence
	E.3.2 (Attachment 2) Resolution 2024-26
	F.3.A (Staff Report) Finance & Administration 2024-1031
	F.3.B (Staff Report) Operations report
	F.3.C.1 (Attachment 1) 2024-10-16 Approved PARC Minutes
	F.3.C.2 (Attachment 2) 2024-10-15 Approved MCFC Minutes
	F.3.D (GM Staff Report)  Nov Rpt Dec Mtg
	F.3.D.1 WWMF Monthly Monitoring

	From Public Agency: 
	FromAddress1: McKinleyville Community Services District
	FromAddress2: 1656 Sutter Road, McKinleyville CA 95519
	County of 1: Humboldt
	County of 2: 
	County of 3: 
	Project Title: Fischer Lift Station Upgrades and Seismic Retrofit
	Project Applicant: McKinleyville Community Services District
	Project Location: 1449 Fischer Ave, McKinleyville CA
	Project Location  City: McKinleyville
	Project Location  County: Humboldt
	Description of Nature: The Project would seismically retrofit the existing Fischer Sewer Lift Station to provide resiliency and reduce the risk of failure to the District's largest sewer lift station in the event of an earthquake. Project activities include seismic bracing, foundation modifications, replacement of four vertical pumps and motors with associated piping and valving, and replacing the motor control center and other electrical equipment.
	Name of Public Agency Approving Project: McKinleyville Community Services District
	Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: McKinleyville Community Services District
	Ministerial Sec 21080b1 15268: 
	Declared Emergency Sec 21080b3 15269a: 
	Emergency Project Sec 21080b4 15269bc: 
	Categorical Exemption State type and section number: X
	Categorical Exemption Type and Section Number: 15302 - Replacement or Reconstruction
	Statutory Exemptions State code number: 
	Statuatory Exemptions: Code: 
	ReasonExempt: Section 15302 consists of the replacement or reconstruction of existing structures and facilities where the new structure will be located on the same site as the structure being replaced. The proposed project includes replacement of equipment within the footprint of the existing lift station building and a minor subsurface footing expansion. The project would not change capacity of operation, rather would just improve resiliency and safety to seismic events.
	Contact Person: Pat Kaspari
	Area CodeTelephoneExtension: (707) 839-3251
	YesNOWfiled: Off
	NOWfiledno: On
	Date_2: 
	Date: 
	Title: General Manager
	Signed by Lead Agency: On
	Signed by Applicant: Off
	Date Received for filing at OPR: 


